
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
Certificate of Recognition to Wyatt Wolf Placing First in the
Nation for Ag Mechanics Fabrication and Design

Wyatt Wolf Biography 6
Request for Donation from Kerman Pop Warner Cheer-Senior
Team

Letter 7
Request for Donation from Kerman Quarterback Club

Letter 8
Minutes

December 3, 2014 9
Payroll

Payroll/Overtime Report 11
Warrants

Accounts Payable 15
Resolution Approving Renewal of Land Lease of 15.2 Acres
with Earl Giacolini and Roland Nale (E & R Ranch)

Staff Report - Giacolini Lease 31
Monthly Investment Report Ending November 30, 2014

Investment Reports 43
Resolution Acquiring Additional Right of Way for the Traffic
Signal Project at the Southeast Corner of Vineland Avenue and
Whitesbridge Road (Sidhu Family Trust)

Staff Report - Right of Way 46
Resolution Accepting the 2014 Street Repair Project

Staff Report - Street Repair Acceptance 48
Resolution Appointing Members to the Planning Commission
and Announcement of Votes

Staff Report - Planning Commission Appointments 50
Resolution Approving the Agreement for Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds for the Kerman Katie's
Park Improvement Project

Staff Report - 2014-2015 CDBG Agreement 56
Council Assignments for Committees, Commissions and Boards

Current Council Assignments 75

1



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, December 17, 2014 

6:30 PM  
 
 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET AVAILABLE FOR  
REVIEW 72 HOURS PRIOR TO  

THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING AT  
THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AND  

ON THE CITY WEBSITE 
ITEMS RECEIVED AT THE 

MEETING WILL BE AVAILABLE  
FOR REVIEW AT THE CITY  

CLERK’S OFFICE  

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

ALL MEETING ATTENDEES ARE ADVISED THAT ALL PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND ANY OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES SHOULD BE POWERED OFF UPON ENTERING THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

AS THESE DEVICES INTERFERE WITH OUR AUDIO EQUIPMENT. 
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 
 

• Welcome – Mayor  
• Call to Order 
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 

At this time the Council wishes to provide anyone an opportunity to give a brief invocation or 
inspirational thought. In accordance with law, we would request this opportunity not be used to 
recruit converts, to advance anyone, or to disparage any other faith or belief. If no one steps 
forward, we will observe a moment of silence so that we may all focus our thoughts on how best 
to serve our community. 

 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  
 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 

To accommodate members of the public or convenience in the order of presentation, items on 
the agenda may not be presented or acted upon in the order listed. 

 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 

A. Swearing-In of Reserve Officers Jacob Dunn, David Caser and Kyle Godfrey (JLB) 
 

B. Certificate of Recognition to Wyatt Wolf  for First Place in the Nation for Ag Mechanics 
Fabrication and Design (MR) 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Wyatt Wolf Biography 
 

C. Request for Donation from Kerman Pop Warner Cheer-Senior Team (MR) 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Letter 
 

2



D. Request for Donation from Kerman Quarterback Club (MR) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Letter 
 

E. Presentation of New City Website (LP) 
 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for members of the public to address the Council on items 
of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Council. Speakers shall be limited to three minutes. It is requested that no comments be made 
during this period on items on the Agenda. Members of the public wishing to address the Council 
on items on the Agenda should notify the Mayor when that Agenda item is called, and the 
Mayor will recognize your discussion at that time. It should be noted that the Council is 
prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda. 
Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name and address. 

 
2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
a member of the audience or a Council Member may request an item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and it will be considered separately. 

 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: December 3, 2014 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 

Payroll Report: November 23, 2014 - December 06, 2014: $124,168.31; Retro Pay & 
Other: $2,683.18: Overtime: $6,012.97; Standby: $1,133.97; Comp Time Earned: 11.00; 
Uniform Allowance: $5,800.00; Holiday Pay: $19,789.62 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Payroll/Overtime Report 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 
1. Nos. 5458-5595: $350,689.17  
2. Excepting: Valley Food Center: #5448 - $207.14; #5487 - $61.29;  
 Sebastian Corp. #5559 - $55.00; #5560 - $3,023.83 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers as 
presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Accounts Payable 
 

Consent Cale ndar  
 
 
 

3



D. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Renewal of Land Lease of 15.2 Acres with Earl Giacolini 
and Roland Nale (E & R Ranch) (PG) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving a land lease 
between the City of Kerman and  E & R Ranch (Earl Giacolini & Roland Nale) a General 
Partnership for 15.2 acres located at the northeast corner of California and Goldenrod 
and authorize the City Manager or designee to execute the Lease. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Giacolini Lease 
 

E. SUBJECT: Monthly Investment Report Ending November 30, 2014 (TJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council accept the Monthly Investment Report as presented 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Investment Reports 
 

F. SUBJECT: Resolution Acquiring Additional Right of Way for the Traffic Signal Project at the 
Southeast Corner of Vineland Avenue and Whitesbridge Road (Sidhu Family Trust) (GH) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt the resolution approving an amendment 
to Real Property Purchase and Sales Agreement for the purchase of additional right of 
way in the amount of $3,041 and authorize the City Manager to execute the agreement. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Sidhu RW Additional 
 

G. SUBJECT: Resolution Accepting the 2014 Street Repair Project (GH) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt the resolution accepting the 2014 Street 
Repair Project and authorize the City Engineer to record the Notice of Completion. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report-Street Repair Acceptance 
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

None 
 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 

A. SUBJECT: Resolution Appointing Members to the Planning Commission and 
Announcement of Votes (MR) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion appoint applicants to fill two three-year terms 
ending December 31, 2017. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Planning Commission Appointments 
 
 

4



B. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving the Agreement for Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) Funds for the Kerman Katie's Park Improvement Project (GH) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt Resolution approving the Agreement for 
CDBG funds for the Kerman Katie's Park Improvement Project and authorize the Mayor 
to sign the Agreement on behalf of the City. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - 2014-2015 CDBG Agreement 
 

C. SUBJECT: Council Assignments for Committees, Commissions and Boards (MR) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council discuss assignments and make changes appropriately. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Current Council Assignments 
 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

7. CLOSED SESSION 
 
None 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to 
participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (559) 846-9380. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City Clerk to make reasonable arrangement to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically handicapped. 

 

5



Wyatt Wolf 
First Place in the Nation for Ag Mechanics Fabrication and Design 

 
 
Wyatt Wolf is the son of Nicole Wolf and Jeffrey Wolf. He is the grandson of Ilene and Vernon Wolf and 
Stan and Diana Alles. Wyatt was born in Fresno, CA and has lived in Kerman his whole life. He attended 
Sun Empire Elementary for K-4th grade, attended 5-8th grade at Houghton Kearney Elementary, and 
attends Kerman High School for 9th-12th grade.  Wyatt is a true country kid who has always enjoyed 
helping in the vineyard, tinkering with the tractors, trucks, atv, and anything he could take apart. 
 
During his first year of high school, Wyatt joined Kerman FFA. In his first year, he showed a pig at the 
Fresno Fair, was a green hand officer, and was a member of the Ag Mechanics team. All through his high 
school career, he has continued to be involved in FFA and take various ag-related classes while working at 
Stan Alles Transport and maintaining good grades.  Last spring he went through an extensive application 
and interview process and won county and State in the proficiency area of Ag Mechanics Fabrication and 
Design. His application was to the National level where Wyatt was chosen as one of four finalists.  He went 
to the National FFA Convention in Louisville, Kentucky where he went through another interview process. 
From there, he was award 1st place in the nation. 
 
Wyatt's SAE project was based on his on-going work and projects at Stan Alles Transport and in the shop 
at Kerman High School.  His main project was the design and fabrication of a tilt bed for his great-
grandfather’s 1958 Dodge Truck. 
 

6



7



8



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, December 3, 2014 

6:30 PM  
 

Gary Yep – Mayor 
Doug Wilcox – Mayor Pro Tem 
Raj Dhaliwal – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

Present: Mayor Yep (GY), Fox (NF), Nijjer (BN), Wilcox (DW) Mayor Elect Hill (SH); 
Rhonda Armstrong (RA) 
Absent: Dhaliwal (RD)  
Also Present: City Manager/Planning & Development Director Patlan, City Attorney 
Blum, Chief of Police, Community Services Director, Finance Director, Public Works 
Director, City Engineer 

Voting: Yes, No, 
Absent (Abstain 
if needed) 

OPENING CEREMONIES  

• Welcome – Mayor Gary Yep . 

• Call to Order 6:33 p.m. 

• Roll Call All present 
except RD/DW 

• Invocation City Clerk 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  Performed 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS Approved 
BN/NF (3-0-2) 
RD/DW 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS None 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL None 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
Payroll Report: November 9-22, 2014: $126,127.45; Other Pay: $4,111.47; 
Overtime: $5,474.21; Standby: $1,202.26; Comp Time Earned: 26.25 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 

1. Nos. 5354-5457: $475,505.17 
2. Excepting: Valley Food Center: #5448 - $207.14 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank 
transfers as presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 

Approved 
BN/NF (3-0-2) 
RD/DW 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9



D. SUBJECT: Resolution Accepting the 2014 Concrete Project (GH) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution accepting the 
2014 Concrete Project and authorize the City Engineer to record the Notice 
of Completion. 
 

E. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Improvement Agreement for Goldenrod 
Avenue Railroad Crossing (GH) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving the 
Public Highway At-Grade Crossing Improvement Agreement with the Union 
Pacific Railroad. 

 

Res 14-66 

 

Res 14-67 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS None 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS  

A. SUBJECT: Resolution Declaring the Results of the 2014 General Election  

RECOMMENDATION: Council review the Fresno County Elections Office 
canvass for Mayor and City Council positions and take the following action: 

Approved 
BN/NF (3-0-2) 
RD/DW 

1. By motion adopt resolution approving the final canvass electing 
Stephen Hill as Mayor for a two-year term and electing Rhonda 
Armstrong and Gary Yep as Council Members each for a four-year 
term; and 

Res 14-68 

2. Authorize the City Clerk to perform the Oaths of Office and present 
Council Members with Certificates of Election; and 

Performed 

New Mayor and 
Council took 
seats at dais. 

3. Council to recognize outgoing Council Members for their years of 
service; and  

6:43 p.m. DW 
arrived 

4. Council to accept nominations for Mayor Pro-Tem and make 
appointment by motion. 

Approved 
BN/NF (5-0-0) 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS  

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS  

7. CLOSED SESSION  

8. ADJOURNMENT 7:04 p.m. 
Approved 
BN/RA 

 

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29





    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PARKS AND RECREATION 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: DECEMBER 17, 2014 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Philip Gallegos, Parks and Recreation Director 
Subject: Resolution Approving Renewal of Land Lease of 15.2 Acres with Earl Giacolini and Roland Nale (E & R Ranch) 

 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution approving a land lease between the City of Kerman and  E & R Ranch (Earl Giacolini & 
Roland Nale) a General Partnership for 15.2 acres located at the northeast corner of California and Goldenrod and authorize 
the City Manager or designee to execute the Lease. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
In 2008, the City entered into a three-year lease and an additional three-year lease extension with E & R Ranch (Earl Giacolini and 
Roland Nale) for 15.2 acres of City-owned property to farm. The property is located at the northeast corner of California and 
Goldenrod. The current lease will expire on December 31, 2014.  
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
In 2008 E & R Ranch (Earl Giacolini & Roland Nale) donated 15.2 acres for a future park. The property has an existing plum 
orchard. However due to a lack of available funding, the property is not scheduled for park development in the near future. Thus the 
best use of this property in the interim is to continue leasing it for farming purposes. A copy of the Lease is attached as Attachment 
‘A’. The conditions of the lease remain the same and the term is extended for three years through December 31, 2017, with an 
option for a subsequent additional three year lease though December 31, 2020.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
Annual rental income to the City (2014-2017) will be $8,542 for each of the first three years and approximately $9,059 for each 
of the additional years (2017-2020).  
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution w/Exhibit ‘A’ 
  

31



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 12 
Resolution Approving Renewal of Land Lease of 15.2 Acres 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
APPROVING THE EXECUTION OF A LEASE RENEWAL AGREEMENT FOR USE OF AGRICULTURAL LANDS. 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF KERMAN AND E & R RANCH, A GENERAL PARTNERSHIP WITH PARTNERS EARL 

GIACOLINI AND ROLAND NALE.  
 

  WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Kerman (the “City”), as the legislative body of the City is authorized to lease 
real property for the common benefit of its citizens. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council does find, determine, resolve and order as follows: 
1. The Council has reviewed the terms of the proposed lease of City owned lands as set forth in the proposed Lease 

renewal between the City of Kerman and E and R Ranch, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A’.  
2. Upon the basis of information provided by City staff, the Lease’s proposed lease price is adequate consideration for 

the lease of the real property.  
3. The proposed Lease promotes a public purpose by providing for the agricultural use of the city’s property to generate 

revenue, and will therefore serve the general welfare of the citizens of Kerman. 
4. The Council has provided opportunity for public comment on the Lease as proposed. 
5.  The Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute the Lease in substantially the form attached hereto as 

Attachment ‘A’ with such subsequent minor revisions as may be approved by the City Manager and the City Attorney.  
6. The Council herby authorizes and directs the officers and employees of the City of Kerman to take such further action 

as may be necessary or useful to the performance of the Lease.  
The foregoing resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman on the 17th day of 

December 2014 and passed at said meeting by the following roll call vote: 
 
     AYES: 
     NOES: 
    ABSENT: 
   ABSTAIN: 
 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
         _______________________ 
         Stephen B. Hill 
         Mayor 
 ATTEST: 
 
 _______________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk  

32



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 12 
Resolution Approving Renewal of Land Lease of 15.2 Acres 
  

Exhibit ‘A’ 
 

AGRICULTURAL LEASE RENEWAL OF REAL PROPERTY 

 THIS AGREEMENT, is to be effective this 27 day of December, 2014, by and between the CITY OF 

KERMAN, a municipal corporation, hereinafter known and designated as Lessor, and E & R Ranch (Earl 

Giacolini & Roland Nale) a General Partnership, hereinafter known and designated as Lessee. 

WITNESSETH: 

 That the Lessor for and in consideration of the terms, covenant and agreements hereinafter set forth 

and which are required to be kept and performed by the Lessee, and in further consideration of the rental 

hereinafter mentioned, payable and to be paid by the Lessee to the Lessor at the time and in the manner 

hereinafter mentioned, hereby leases and lets unto the said Lessee for the term hereinafter specified, the 

following real property (referred to herein as the “Premises”) consisting of 15.2 acres currently planted to 

plums and situated in the County of Fresno, State of California described as: 

 See Exhibit ‘A’ attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 THE PARTIES HERETO, EACH TO THE OTHER EXPRESSLY COVENANT, PROMISE AND 

AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

I 

TERM, EXTENSION AND EARLY TERMINATION 

 That the term of this lease shall be for a three (3) year period of time commencing January 1, 2015, 

and terminating on the 31st day of December 2017. Irrespective of the foregoing termination date, if at 

expiration of the term of this lease, or the earlier termination pursuant to the provisions herein, the Lessee 

has not fully harvested any crop then growing upon the demised premises, the Lessee shall have the right to 

re-enter upon said premises to harvest the crop, but not later than September 30 of any crop year. For 

purposes of this Lease, a crop year begins on December 1 and continues until harvest is completed, not 

later than September 30 of the following calendar year. 

 Not later than 90 days prior to the expiration of the term of this lease, Lessee shall inform Lessor 

in writing whether Lessee will seek a renewal of this Lease. If Lessee so informs Lessor, and provided 

that Lessee has complied with the provisions of this Lease, Lessee shall have the option for fifteen (15) 

days to enter into a subsequent lease for a term of three (3) more years to commence January 1, 2018 

and to end on or before December 31 , 2020.  The subsequent lease would generally consist of the 

same terms of this lease; but the annual rental amount for the renewed term shall increase by six percent 

(6%) rounded up to the nearest dollar. 

33



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 12 
Resolution Approving Renewal of Land Lease of 15.2 Acres 
  
 Upon Lessee’s failure to provide written notice of intent to extend the Lease or exercise the option 

on or before the 75th day prior to expiration, Lessee shall have no further right to renew or extend this 

Lease and Lessor shall seek alternate Lessees or uses for the Premises. If at the end of the term, 

Lessee fails to give notice of intent to renew, the Lessor will solicit other bids for the leasing of the 

Premises, and Lessee may be a bidder in response to such solicitation.  

 The parties acknowledge that Lessor has acquired this land for the eventual construction of a 

park and recreation facility, and that Lessor may at any time give notice that this Lease, or any extension 

of it, shall terminate upon the completion of harvest in any crop year. Parties agree that City may 

terminate this Lease for imminent park development of the whole premises or only a portion of the premises, 

subject to the provisions for completion of harvest set forth above.  

II 

RENT 

 That the Lessee shall pay to the Lessor as rent for the demised premises and personal property the 

following sums, to wit: 

 A. On or before the 1st day of December of each year of the term of this lease, the Lessee shall pay 

to the Lessor the sum of Five Hundred Thirty Dollars ($562.00) per acre for 15.2 farmable acres as an 

advance cash rent due on or before December 31st of each contract year.  

  B.  Lessee agrees that it would be impracticable or extremely difficult to fix the actual damage to 

Lessor caused by the failure of Lessee to make any payment of rent within ten (10) days of the due date 

and, therefore, Lessee agrees that if any payment of rent is not made within ten (10) days of its due date, 

Lessee agrees to pay Lessor a one and one half percent (1.5%) late charge, compounded monthly until 

paid in full. 

III 

PURPOSE AND MANAGEMENT 

 That this being an agricultural lease of a producing plum orchard, the Lessee shall make the land 

productive using the demised premises solely for farming purposes as the same as outlined herein. The 

Lessee shall have the use of any crop allotment allocated to the demised Premises for any crop year in 

which Lessee occupies the Premises, and the Lessee may farm the same in combination with any other real 

property of which the Lessee is the owner, operator or has an interest provided that such use shall at all 

times conform to the rules and regulations of the Department of Agriculture or other applicable authority and 

shall not cause said allotment to be jeopardized or penalized in any manner with respect to the real property 

which is the subject matter of this lease, and in this regard any such allotment shall revert to the Lessor at 

the expiration of the term of this lease. The Lessee shall farm the demised premises in accordance with the 

34



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 12 
Resolution Approving Renewal of Land Lease of 15.2 Acres 
  
accepted practices of husbandry in the area not permitting or suffering any waste thereon and keeping down 

and controlling the growth of noxious weeds and grasses or other pests. Subject to the foregoing provisions 

the crop or crops to be grown on the subject real property and the amount thereof shall be as the Lessee 

may determine. The Lessee acknowledges that the Lessor has not made any representations or warranties 

as to the level, fertility, productivity or other condition of the demised Premises or of the type or size of any 

allotment relating thereto, and that the Lessee in leasing the same is relying solely on the inspections, 

experience and judgment of the Lessee.  

 IV 

 EXPENSES  

 That except as otherwise expressly provided for herein, the Lessee shall pay all of the costs and 

expenses of farming the demised premises and the irrigating, cultivating, growing, harvesting, producing, 

delivering and selling of the crop or crops produced thereon, and the Lessor shall not be liable or 

responsible for the same; likewise the Lessee shall furnish all of the labor, equipment and materials 

connected therewith. In addition thereto, the Lessee shall pay any property tax or possessory interest tax 

assessed by reason of this lease. In this regard the parties acknowledge that if for any reason a real 

property or personal property tax should be levied and assessed on the demised real property or 

improvements (land, trees & pipeline) or personal property thereon, the same would be the responsibility of 

the Lessee.   

 V 

 IRRIGATION 

 That the parties acknowledge that the subject real property is irrigated solely by irrigation district 

water and that there are no wells or pumps on the demised premises for irrigation purposes. Lessee shall 

pay Fresno Irrigation District annual assessments   

 VI 

 ASSIGNMENT 

 That the Lessee may not assign this lease or sublet any portion of the demised premises without the 

written consent of Lessor, provided, however, that any such assignment or subletting shall not relieve 

Lessee from his obligation pursuant to this lease. 

 VII 

 ENTRY AND POSSESSION 

 That the Lessor shall have the right of entry upon said demised premises at all times during the term 

hereof, either in person or by nominee, for the purpose of inspecting said real property and ascertaining that 

35



City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 12 
Resolution Approving Renewal of Land Lease of 15.2 Acres 
  
the promises and covenants of the Lessee herein contained are being kept, observed and performed, and at 

the expiration of the term of this lease, or any prior termination hereof, or any extension hereof, the Lessee 

agrees to surrender possession of said Demised Property to the Lessor in as good condition as the Lessee 

shall have received the same, normal wear and tear and loss by casualty not caused by the negligent or 

willful act or omission of the Lessee excepted, and with the land in a neat and clean condition. The Lessor 

agrees that if the Lessee pays the rental for said demised real property as herein provided and faithfully 

performs the covenants, conditions and agreements herein contained on the part of the Lessee to be kept, 

observed and performed, that the Lessee shall have peaceful possession of the demised premises during 

the term hereof without hindrance or interference by the Lessor. Parties agree that City may terminate this 

Lease for imminent park development of the whole premises or only a portion of the premises, subject to the 

provisions for completion of harvest set forth above. Any removal of orchard trees for the preparation of a 

park or similar use pursuant to such early termination shall be the responsibility of the Lessor. 

 VIII 

 CROP WAIVER 

 That it is understood and agreed that the Lessee may finance the growing of crops on said premises 

by crop loan, and in this connection if the lender to the Lessee shall require a waiver by the Lessor with 

respect to any crops growing on said demised premises, to be mortgaged as security for such crop loan, the 

Lessor agrees that the Lessor will execute said waiver provided that the advance cash rent for the subject 

crop year has been paid (to be effective the form of said waiver must be approved in writing by the attorney 

for the Lessor). 

 IX 

 BREACH OR ABANDONMENT 

 That all of the agreements, covenants and conditions of this lease shall be deemed material. In the 

event that the Lessee shall be in default in the performance of any of the same, after ten (10) days written 

notice to comply has been first served on the Lessee by the Lessor, the Lessor shall have the right, at the 

option of the Lessor, in addition to any other remedy the Lessor may have, to terminate this lease and enter 

into and take immediate possession of the demised premises, and in that event the Lessee shall have no 

further right, title or interest therein or to the crop or crops growing thereon. Should the Lessee abandon said 

demised premises or the crop or crops growing thereon before the same shall have reached maturity, or 

before harvest, the Lessor shall have the right, at the option of the Lessor, to enter upon the demised 

premises and care for the same and harvest the same, and all right, title or interest of the Lessee in the 

demised premises and to the crop or crops growing and standing thereon shall in such event be terminated 

and at an end. In the event of litigation arising in connection with this lease, the prevailing party shall be 

entitled to costs of suit and reasonable attorney's fees.  

36



City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 12 
Resolution Approving Renewal of Land Lease of 15.2 Acres 
  
 X 

 INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 (a) Lessee, as a material part of the consideration to be rendered to Lessor under this 

Lease, waives all claims against Lessor for damages to the Premises and all personal property in, on, or 

about the Property, and for injuries to persons in or about the Property, from any cause arising at any time 

except to the extent that the damage or injury is a direct result of the gross negligence or willful misconduct 

of Lessor, its officers, officials, employees, agents, volunteers or licensees.  Further, Lessee shall indemnify, 

hold harmless and defend the Lessor and each of its officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers 

from any and all loss, liability, fines, penalties, forfeitures, costs and damages (whether in contract, tort or 

strict liability, including but not limited to personal injury, death at any time and property damage) incurred by 

Lessor, Lessee or any other person, and from any and all claims, demands and actions in law or equity 

(including attorneys fees and litigation expenses), arising or alleged to have arisen directly out of (i) Lessee’s 

use of the Property, (ii) Lessee’s failure to conduct its activities and maintain its equipment or property 

thereon in safe condition, or (iii) performance or non-performance of any activity related to this Lease, 

except if caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Lessor or any of its officers, officials, 

employees, agents, volunteers or licensees.  

If the Lessee should subcontract all or any portion of the work performed under this Lease, 

then Lessee shall require each subcontractor to indemnify, hold harmless and defend Lessor, its officers, 

officials, employees and agents in accordance with the terms of the preceding paragraph. This Paragraph 

shall survive the expiration or termination of this Lease. 

(b) Throughout the life of this Lease, Lessee shall pay for and maintain in full force and 

effect with an insurance company(s), admitted by the California Insurance Commissioner to do business in 

the State of California and rated not less than AA-/VII in Best’s Insurance Rating Guide, the following 

policies of insurance: 

(i)  COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY insurance which shall include contractual, 

products and completed operations coverages, bodily injury and property damage liability insurance with 

combined single limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. 

(ii)  AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY insurance, ISO Form Number CA 00 01 covering any 

auto (Code 1), with limit no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

(iii)  WORKERS COMPENSATION insurance as required by the State of California, 

with Statutory Limits. 

  

37



City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 12 
Resolution Approving Renewal of Land Lease of 15.2 Acres 
  

The above described policies of insurance shall be endorsed to provide an unrestricted 

30-day written notice in favor of the Lessor, of policy cancellation, change or reduction of coverage, except 

for the Workers Compensation policy which shall provide a 10-day written notice of such cancellation, 

change or reduction of coverage. Upon issuance by the insurer, broker, or agent of a notice of cancellation, 

change or reduction in coverage, Lessee shall file with Lessor a certificate of such insurance  

The General Liability and Automobile Liability insurance policies shall be written on an 

occurrence form and shall name the City of Kerman, its officers, officials, agents, and employees as 

additional insureds. Such policy(s) of insurance shall be endorsed so that Lessee’s insurance shall be 

primary and no contribution shall be required of the Lessor. Lessee shall furnish the Lessor with the 

certificate(s) and applicable endorsements for ALL required insurance prior to the Effective Date. 

Any failure to maintain the required insurance shall be sufficient cause for Lessor to 

terminate this Lease. 

If Lessee should subcontract all or any portion of the work to be performed under this Lease, 

Lessee shall require each subcontractor to provide insurance protection in favor of Lessor, its officers, 

officials, employees and agents in accordance with the terms of each of the preceding paragraphs, except 

that the subcontractors' certificates and endorsements shall be on file with Lessee and Lessor prior to the 

commencement of any work by the subcontractor. 

 XI 

 BANKRUPTCY 

 That if the Lessee at any time during the term hereof shall become insolvent or be adjudged 

bankrupt, either voluntarily or involuntarily, or should the Lessee commence any proceedings of any nature 

under the special provisions of the Bankruptcy Act for Farmers, this lease shall immediately terminate, at the 

option of the Lessor, and the Lessor shall immediately have the right to re-enter upon and take possession 

of said leased premises, and this leasehold shall not be or become a part of the bankrupt estate or be 

subject to any administration under conciliation proceedings.  

 XII 

 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 

 Lessee shall not improperly store, maintain, introduce, or permit the improper storing, 

maintenance, or introduction of any hazardous material or hazardous waste upon the premises. Lessee 

shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Lessor against any claim, loss, liability, damages or demand 

arising in connection with the presence, introduction, or maintenance of any hazardous material or 

hazardous waste if such presence, introduction or maintenance occurred during Lessee's possession of the 

Premises. The indemnification provided hereby includes, but is not limited to, expenses for investigation, 

38



City Council Staff Report   Page 9 of 12 
Resolution Approving Renewal of Land Lease of 15.2 Acres 
  
clean-up or remediation, and for defense of all claims or charges arising in connection with such hazardous 

materials. This Section shall survive the termination or expiration of this Lease. 

 XIII 

 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS  

 Lessee shall not do, or suffer to be done in, on or about said premises anything that would or does 

violate or conflict with any applicable law, ordinance, rule or regulation which is now in force or effect, or 

which may hereinafter be enacted, promulgated or adopted by Federal, State, County, or any other local 

agency having jurisdiction over the premises. In the event that, in complying with such laws, ordinances, 

rules or regulations, Lessee should necessarily violate any of the terms or provisions of this Lease, Lessee 

shall not by that fact be held in breach by Lessor. 

 XIV 

 OIL, GAS AND MINERAL RIGHTS 

 That the Lessee shall not have and does not acquire any interest in the oil, gas, mineral or 

subsurface rights in or under the leased premises as a result of this lease, and the Lessor reserves the right 

for itself and its Lessees to enter upon the demised premises for the purposes of exploring for, producing 

and processing oil, gas or other minerals. In this event, the Lessee shall be entitled to a pro-rata reduction in 

rent by reason of any acreage occupied for such purpose and for the then market value of any growing 

crops destroyed or damaged as the result of such operations. 

 XV 

 WAIVER 

 That no waiver of the breach of any of the covenants of this lease shall be construed or held to be a 

waiver of any other breach or waiver, or acquiescence in or consent to any further succeeding breach of the 

same covenant. 

 XVI 

 BINDING EFFECT 

 That this agreement shall extend to and bind the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and 

assigns of the respective parties hereto; and  

 XVII 

 CONSTRUCTION 

 That the words "Lessor" and "Lessee" as herein used shall include the singular and plural 

numbers, and the masculine, feminine, and neuter genders, as context requires. Nothing in this Lease 

39



City Council Staff Report   Page 10 of 12 
Resolution Approving Renewal of Land Lease of 15.2 Acres 
  
shall be construed or interpreted to make Lessor anything but a lessor and in all of its activities and 

operations pursuant to this Lease, Lessee shall for no purpose be considered agent of Lessor. If this 

Lease is found to contain any ambiguity, the Lease shall be construed as if both parties had drafted it. 

XVIII 

ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 This Lease contains the entire agreement between the parties as to the subject matter hereof. No 

promises, representation, warranty, or covenant not included in this Lease has been or is relied on by 

either party. Each party has relied upon his own examination of this Lease, the counsel of his own 

advisors, and the warranties, representations, and covenants in the Lease itself. The failure or refusal of 

either party to inspect the Premises or Demised Property, to read the Lease or other documents, or to 

obtain legal or other advice relevant to this transaction constitutes a waiver of any objection, contention, 

or claim that might have been based on such reading, inspection, or advice. 

XIX 

ATTORNEY’S FEES 

If either party brings any action or proceeding, including an arbitration, to enforce, protect, or 

establish any right or remedy, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorney’s fees 

and costs of enforcement at arbitration, trial and appeal. 

XX 

AUTHORIZED ACTION 

Each party signing below certifies that he or she is authorized to execute this Lease and thereby 

obligate the party on whose behalf such signature is made. The authority of each signer was, if 

necessary, granted by appropriate corporate action. 

XXI 

SEVERABILITY 

Should one or more provisions of this Lease be determined to be illegal, invalid, or 

unenforceable, that provision or provisions, shall be deleted from this agreement, and all other provisions 

shall remain effective. 

  

40



City Council Staff Report   Page 11 of 12 
Resolution Approving Renewal of Land Lease of 15.2 Acres 
  

XXII 

CALIFORNIA LAW APPLIES  

This Lease and matters related to it shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. This 

Lease concerns land in the County of Fresno, State of California, and the parties have their principal 

offices and have entered into this Lease in said County. 

XXIII 

AMENDMENT TO BE IN WRITING; AUTHORIZATION REQUIRED 

This Lease may be modified or amended only by a writing duly authorized and executed by both 

LESSOR and LESSEE. It may not be amended or modified by oral agreements or understanding 

between the parties. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands, to be effective as of the 

day and year first above written. 

 

LESSOR      LESSEE 

 

CITY OF KERMAN     PARTNERS E & R RANCH  

 

BY________________________________  BY_____________________________ 
   Luis Patlan, City Manager          Earl Giacolini 
 
 
       BY_____________________________ 
          Roland Nale  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________  
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

  

41



City Council Staff Report   Page 12 of 12 
Resolution Approving Renewal of Land Lease of 15.2 Acres 
  

YAMABE & HORN ENGINEERING, INC. 
CIVIL ENGINEERS - LAND SURVEYORS 

1300 E. Shaw Avenue, Suite 176, Fresno, CA 93710 
(559) 244-3123, FAX (559)244-3120 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT ‘A’ 
May 9, 2008 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
GIACOLINI GIFT PROPERTY 
CITY OF KERMAN 
 
COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 14 SOUTH, 
RANGE 18 EAST, MOUNT DIABLO BASE AND MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE 
OFFICIAL PLAT THEREOF; THENCE SOUTH 89°51’14” EAST, ALONG THE SOUTH 
LINE OF SAID SECTION 8, A DISTANCE OF 185.94 FEET, TO THE TRUE POINT 
OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF A NON-TANGENT 
CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY WITH CENTER POINT BEARING SOUTH 63°20’27” 
EAST A RADIUS OF 666.34 FEET, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 40°44’24” AN 
ARC LENGTH OF 473.80 FEET; THENCE NORTH 67°23’57” EAST A DISTANCE OF 
178.60 FEET, TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF THE 
UNION PACIFIC (FORMERLY SOUTHERN PACIFIC) RAILROAD COMPANY’S MAIN LINE 
FROM KERMAN TO FRESNO, SAID POINT BEING AT RIGHT ANGLES TO AND DISTANT 
50 FEET SOUTHERLY FROM THE CENTER OF ABOVE SAID MAIN LINE AT 
ENGINEER’S STATION 31+09.9; THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY 
LINE, ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY WITH CENTER POINT 
BEARING NORTH 18°09’28” WEST A RADIUS OF 11509.16 FEET, THROUGH A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 1°29’25” AN ARC LENGTH OF 299.41 FEET; THENCE NORTH 
70°21’06” EAST A DISTANCE OF 753.75 FEET; THENCE LEAVING SAID RIGHT OF 
WAY LINE, SOUTH 0°27’40” WEST A DISTANCE OF 739.08 FEET, TO A POINT ON 
THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 8;THENCE NORTH 89°51’14” WEST, ALONG 
SAID SOUTH LINE, A DISTANCE OF 1491.44 FEET, TO THE TRUE POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 
 
CONTAINING 15.20 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

 

42



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of November 30, 2014 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid
CD's:
Pacific Mercantile Bank 80900343 0.95% 1/22/08 1/22/14 99,000.00               99,000.00        99,000.00               419.30            

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.20% 8/11/11 8/11/14 52,000.00               (52,000.00)      -                   -                         309.44            

CIT Bank 615-030525-245 1.15% 8/10/11 8/11/14 46,000.00               (46,000.00)      -                   -                         263.78            

World Financial Network NB 615-030525-245 1.25% 8/31/11 8/29/14 200,000.00             (200,000.00)    -                   -                  

Ally Bank  615-030525-245 1.75% 10/8/10 10/8/14 100,000.00             (100,000.00)    -                   877.40            

CIT Bank, Salt Lake City, UT 615-030525-245 1.50% 5/4/11 11/4/14 99,000.00               (99,000.00)      -                   748.60            

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 11/5/10 11/5/14 97,000.00               (97,000.00)      -                   831.28            

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 1/21/11 1/21/15 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,166.00             843.01            

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.00% 3/24/11 3/24/15 98,000.00               98,000.00        98,448.84               988.05            

Ally Bank, Midvale 615-030525-245 1.80% 6/8/11 6/8/15 147,000.00             147,000.00       148,130.43             -                  

EverBank 615-030525-245 0.70% 12/14/12 6/15/15 98,000.00               98,000.00        98,271.46               -                  

Mercantile Bank of Michigan 615-030525-245 2.00% 1/21/11 7/21/15 150,000.00             150,000.00       151,476.00             1,487.67          

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.50% 8/5/11 8/5/15 50,000.00               50,000.00        50,327.50               371.92            

Sallie Mae Bank 615-030525-245 1.10% 8/8/12 8/10/15 97,000.00               97,000.00        97,452.02               529.12            

Safra National Bank 615-030525-245 0.70% 8/15/13 8/17/15 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,114.00             347.12            

Discover Bank 615-030525-245 1.55% 9/14/11 9/14/15 99,000.00               99,000.00        100,071.18             773.56            

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.25% 9/29/10 9/29/15 100,000.00             100,000.00       101,359.00             1,134.25          

Lake City Bank 615-030525-245 0.55% 1/29/14 1/29/16 95,000.00               95,000.00        95,046.55               263.42            

Discover Bank Greenwood 615-030525-245 1.35% 2/1/12 2/1/16 51,000.00               51,000.00        51,669.12               341.42            

Goldman Sachs Bank 615-030525-245 1.40% 2/1/12 2/1/16 48,000.00               48,000.00        48,377.28               333.24            

Synovus Bank 615-030525-245 0.50% 3/17/14 3/17/16 100,000.00             100,000.00       99,885.00               -                  

Doral Bank 615-030525-245 0.70% 6/12/13 6/13/16 149,000.00             149,000.00       149,053.64             -                  

Doral Bank San Juan PR 615-030525-245 1.20% 6/28/12 6/28/16 99,000.00               99,000.00        99,890.01               -                  

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.00% 8/12/11 8/12/16 47,000.00               47,000.00        47,873.26               466.14            

Medallion Bank 615-030525-245 1.00% 8/19/13 8/19/16 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,357.00             495.89            

Goldman Sachs Bank USA 615-030525-245 1.85% 8/31/11 8/31/16 200,000.00             200,000.00       203,178.00             1,865.21          

Ally Bank 615-030525-245 0.95% 10/2/14 10/11/16 100,000.00      100,000.00       99,912.00               

Capital One Bank Glen Allen VA 615-030525-245 1.00% 11/12/14 11/14/16 96,000.00        96,000.00        95,769.60               

Firstbank of Puerto Rico 6-15-030525-245 1.10% 1/25/13 1/25/17 53,000.00               53,000.00        53,137.27               244.40            

Firstbank of Puerto Rico 615-030525-245 0.90% 3/1/13 3/1/17 196,000.00             196,000.00       196,145.04             739.44            

CIT Bank 615-030525-245 0.90% 3/27/13 3/27/17 98,000.00               98,000.00        98,115.64               444.62            

Ge Capital Bank 615-030525-245 1.10% 5/8/14 5/16/17 248,000.00             248,000.00       247,466.80             1,375.21          

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 7/26/12 7/26/17 98,000.00               98,000.00        99,110.34               826.15            

Sallie Mae Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 8/22/12 8/22/17 150,000.00             150,000.00       152,070.00             1,748.47          

1st Merchants 615-030525-245 1.00% 3/21/14 9/21/17 96,000.00               96,000.00        96,063.36               -                  

Third Federal 615-030525-245 1.15% 2/21/14 11/21/17 99,000.00               99,000.00        99,195.03               2,127.31          

Bank of Baroda 615-030525-245 1.25% 3/8/13 3/8/18 248,000.00             248,000.00       247,132.00             -                  

Wells Fargo Bank in SD 615-030525-245 1.00% 3/28/13 3/29/18 248,000.00             248,000.00       248,042.16             625.10            

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.15% 5/16/13 5/16/18 98,000.00               98,000.00        97,192.48               568.13            

Compass Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 7/31/13 7/31/18 97,000.00               97,000.00        97,935.08               817.72            

American Express Bank, FSB 615-030525-245 1.25% 8/14/14 8/14/18 98,000.00        98,000.00        97,565.86               

Barclays Bank 615-030525-245 1.90% 4/15/14 4/15/19 248,000.00             248,000.00       248,307.52             2,362.45          

BMW Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 1.95% 6/20/14 6/20/19 200,000.00             200,000.00       199,468.00             -                  

Cit Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 2.15% 11/13/14 11/13/19 100,000.00      100,000.00       99,390.00               

Average Rate 1.25%
43



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of November 30, 2014 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid

Subtotal - CD's 4,798,000.00          (200,000.00)    -                       4,598,000.00    4,612,164.47          25,568.82        
Government Securities:

Subtotal - Government Securities -                          -                  -                       -                   -                         -                  

Central Valley Comm Bank CD
200,000.00             200,000.00       200,000.00             1,123.40          

Total CD and Government Securities Investments 4,998,000.00          (200,000.00)    -                       4,798,000.00    4,812,164.47          26,692.22        

Chandler Asset Management
Beginning Balance -                          -                   

(City of Kerman) 150,825.51             150,825.51       150,825.51             -                  
Interest -                   

-                   -                  
Chandler Ending Balance Total Chandler Investments 150,825.51             -                  -                       150,825.51       150,825.51             -                  

Central Valley Money Market Acct 015030960
Beginning Balance 2,901,993.40          2,901,993.40    
Interest 7/31/14 286.72            286.72             286.72            

8/31/14 282.39            282.39             282.39            
9/30/14 231.47            231.47             231.47            

10/31/14 236.58            236.58             236.58            
11/30/14 215.31            215.31             215.31            

-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  

Transfers In/(Out) 7/10/14 (125,000.00)    (125,000.00)     
8/28/14 (50,000.00)      (50,000.00)       
9/12/14 (500,000.00)    (500,000.00)     
9/19/14 (160,000.00)    (160,000.00)     
10/2/14 350,000.00      350,000.00       

10/16/14 (165,000.00)    (165,000.00)     
11/19/14 (175,000.00)    (175,000.00)     

-                   
-                   

2,901,993.40          (823,747.53)    -                       2,078,245.87    2,078,245.87          1,252.47          

Subtotal All City Investments 4,798,000.00          (200,000.00)    -                       4,598,000.00    4,612,164.47          25,568.82        

44



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of November 30, 2014 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid
SUCCESSOR AGENCY

Total - CD's -                          -                  -                       -                   -                         -                  

CVCB Money Market Accts 015029549
Beginning Balance 131,388.51             131,388.51       
Interest 7/31/14 4.46                4.46                 4.46                

8/31/14 4.46                4.46                 4.46                
9/30/14 4.03                4.03                 4.03                

-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  

Transfers In/(Out) 9/29/14 (131,397.43)    (131,397.43)     
10/1/14 (4.03)               (4.03)                

-                   
-                   

Subtotal CVCB Money Market 131,388.51             (131,388.51)    -                       (0.00)                (0.00)                      12.95              

Subtotal SBI Money Market -                          -                  -                       -                   -                         -                  

Ending Balance - Money Market Accts 131,388.51             (131,388.51)    -                       (0.00)                (0.00)                      12.95              

Subtotal All Successor Agency Investments 131,388.51             (131,388.51)    -                       (0.00)                (0.00)                      12.95              

Total Investments 5,280,214.02          (331,388.51)    -                       4,948,825.51    4,962,989.98          26,705.17        
Market Value Adjustment 14,164.47               

(331,388.51)     
(331,388.51)     

-                   

45



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: DECEMBER 17, 2014 

 To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Gary D. Horn, City Engineer 
Subject: Resolution Acquiring Additional Right of Way for the Traffic Signal Project at the Southeast Corner of Vineland 

Avenue and Whitesbridge Road (Sidhu Family Trust) 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt the resolution approving an amendment to Real Property Purchase and Sales Agreement for the 
purchase of additional right of way in the amount of $3,041 and authorize the City Manager to execute the agreement. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
The City entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement with Mr. and Mrs. Jack Sidhu for the acquisition of right of way at the 
southeast corner of Vineland Avenue and Whitesbridge Road for the installation of a traffic signal. The City purchased the right 
of way for $60,000 based on an MAI appraisal. Caltrans is now requiring the construction of additional sidewalk along 
Whitesbridge Road which necessitates the acquisition of 268 square feet of additional right of way. The cost for the additional 
right of way is $3,041. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
The additional right of way is needed in order to comply with Caltrans requirements. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The City has received Federal funding to install a traffic signal at the intersection of Whitesbridge Road and Vineland Avenue. 
In order to construct the new traffic signal at the ultimate location, the City purchased right of way from the property owners 
(Sidhu family) along the frontage of Whitesbridge Road and Vineland Avenue. The scope of the project will include the removal 
of the corner of the existing building in order to install the corner return and sidewalk. 
 
As part of the final review of the construction plans, Caltrans is requiring the construction of additional sidewalk along 
Whitesbridge Road which was not included in the original plan. The sidewalk will require the acquisition of 268 square feet of 
additional right of way from the property owners (215 square feet of roadway and 53 square feet of building). The value of the 
right of way is $3,041 dollars based on the appraisal completed for the original purchase. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The project budget will be increased by $3,041, which can come from the contingencies line item. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution  
  

46



City Council Staff Report 
Amendment to Purchase & Sales Agreement – Whitesbridge Road and Vineland Traffic Signal Project  Page 2 of 2  
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
APPROVING AN AMENDMENT OF AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE OF RIGHT OF WAY FOR THE WHITESBRIDGE & 

VINELAND TRAFFIC SIGNAL PROJECT 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Kerman is proposing to construct a traffic signal at the intersection of Whitesbridge Road and 
Vineland Avenue; and 
 
 WHEREAS, right of way acquisition is required from property owners within the project limits; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Kerman entered into a Real Property Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 29, 2014 
with the property owners for the acquisition of right of way from Jagrup S. Sidhu and Sukhdev K. Sidhu, as Co-trustees of the J. 
S. and S. K. Sidhu Family Revocable Trust dated November 10, 2009, APN 023-220-01S, in the amount of $60,000; and  
 
 WHEREAS,  additional land is needed for right of way to construct additional improvements required by Caltrans along 
Whitesbridge Road, State route 180; and  
  
 WHEREAS, the City Engineer recommends the approval of the purchase of additional right of way from the property 
owners for the value listed. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN HEREBY APPROVES the purchase of 
additional right of way from Jagrup S. Sidhu and Sukhdev K. Sidhu, as Co-trustees of the J. S. and S. K. Sidhu Family 
Revocable Trust dated November 10, 2009 for $3,041, bringing the total compensation to $63,041 and authorizes the City 
Manager to sign an amendment to the Real Property Purchase and Sale Agreement and any associated escrow instructions for 
the acquisition of the additional property on behalf of the City, and to take such further actions as may be consistent with this 
Resolution and the Real Property Purchase and Sale Agreement. 
 
 The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 17th 
day of December, 2014, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 
 
 AYES: 
 NOES: 
 ABSENT: 
 ABSTAIN: 
  
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
              
       Stephen B. Hill 
       Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
                                                                  
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

47



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER      
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PUBLIC WORKS 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: DECEMBER 17, 2014 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Gary D. Horn, City Engineer 
Subject: Resolution Accepting the 2014 Street Repair Project 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt the resolution accepting the 2014 Street Repair Project and authorize the City Engineer to 
record the Notice of Completion. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
The Contractor, Yarbs Grading and Paving, Inc. has completed the work required for the 2014 Street Repair Project. 
The project repaired damaged pavement at various locations throughout the City. The City Public Works Inspector 
has inspected the improvements required by the project and all of the improvements have been completed.   
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Public Works Staff developed a list of damaged pavement areas at various locations throughout the City. The 
damage to the existing pavement was due to normal deterioration and appearance of potholes, inadequate subgrade 
causing the pavement to sink or depress, or pavement removal for underground utility repair or maintenance. The 
2014 Street Repair Project removed the existing pavement and/or patch material and replaced it with the appropriate 
pavement section.  In addition, the perimeter of the repair was infrared heated and re-mixed with the existing asphalt 
concrete to create a seamless repair.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The total project cost was $108,500, including engineering and construction management. The project is included in 
the City’s Budget in the amount of $111,000 to be funded from Local Transportation Funds. The budget was 
increased from $81,000 to $111,000 by Council on August 20, 2014 due to higher than anticipated construction 
costs. 
   
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None Required. 
 
Attachments: 

A. Resolution 

48



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 2 
Final Acceptance – 2014 Street Repair Project 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
ACCEPTING IMPROVEMENTS AND AUTHORIZING FILING OF THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

FOR THE 2014 STREET REPAIR PROJECT 
 
 WHEREAS, Yarbs Grading and Paving, Inc. has completed the work for the 2014 Street Repair Project and; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Public Works Inspector has inspected the improvements required by the City and all 
improvements required by the City have been completed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Engineer recommends acceptance of the 2014 Street Repair Project and requests Council to 
authorize the City Engineer to record the Notice of Completion for the project. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN HEREBY ACCEPTS the 2014 Street Repair 
Project and authorizes the City Engineer to record the Notice of Completion. 
 
 The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 17th 
day of December, 2014, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 
 

 AYES: 
 NOES: 
 ABSENT: 
 ABSTAIN: 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
                                                                                  
       Stephen B. Hill  

Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
                                                                  
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

 
 

49



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: CITY CLERK 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: DECEMBER 17, 2014 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Marci Reyes, City Clerk 
Subject: Resolution Appointing Members to the Planning Commission and Announcement of Votes 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion appoint the two applicants to the Planning Commission for the two three-year terms ending 
December 31, 2014, or provide staff with an alternate course of direction. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
The Kerman Planning Commission has two available seats for appointments ending December 31, 2017.  
 
Two applications were received by the December 5, 2014 deadline from Charlie Jones and Mario Nuňez. The 
applications are included in the staff report for Council review. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
The announcement for the two vacancies was published in the Kerman News under Community Events, on the City 
website and posted at City Hall from November 5 through November 26 with a deadline of December 5. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Applicants were invited to attend the meeting, introduce themselves, state briefly, why they are seeking appointment 
to the Commission and answer any questions the Council may have.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
None 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None required 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Applications 
B. Resolution 

 

50



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 6 
Planning Commission Appointments 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
  

51



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 6 
Planning Commission Appointments 
  
  

52



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 6 
Planning Commission Appointments 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

53



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 6 
Planning Commission Appointments 
  

54



City Council Staff Report    Page 6 of 6 
Planning Commission Appointments 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 
 

RESOLUTION 14-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE 
PLANNING COMMISSION AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF VOTE 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council appoints members to the Planning Commission and received two applications 
to fill two three-year terms ending December 31, 2017; and  
 
 WHEREAS, at the December 17, 2014 City Council Meeting the City Council voted to fill the two vacancies  
with the following appointments: 
 
  ______________________________ and _________________________________ 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN as follows: appointing 
_________________________ and _________________________ to the Kerman Planning Commission for three-
year terms ending December 31, 2017. 
 
     The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council oft eh City of Kerman held on the 
17th Day of December 2014 and passed with the following vote: 
 
 AYES: 
 NOES: 
 ABSENT: 
 ABSTAIN: 
 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________ 
        Stephen B. Hill 
        Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

55



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER      
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PUBLIC WORKS 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: DECEMBER 17, 2014 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Gary D. Horn, City Engineer 
Subject: Resolution Approving the Agreement for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds for the 

Kerman Katie’s Park Improvement Project 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution approving the Agreement for CDBG funds for the Kerman Katie’s Park 
Improvement Project and authorize the Mayor to sign the Agreement on behalf of the City. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
The City’s application for CDBG funds for the Kerman Katie’s Park Improvements Project has been approved by the 
County of Fresno (County). The project will install a pre-fabricated restroom and park amenities at Katie’s Kids 
Nature Park. CDBG funds in the amount of $194,832 are available to the City for the project. In order to proceed 
with the project and receive CDBG funds, the City must execute the attached Agreement with the County. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The County is designated as the sponsoring agency to administer and implement the CDBG Program for the County 
and its participating Cities, which includes Kerman. CDBG funds are allocated to each of the participating Cities on 
an annual basis. The City submitted an application for CDBG funds for the Katie’s Park Improvements Project in 
August 2013 for fiscal year 2014-2015 CDBG funding. The project consists of the installation of a pre-fabricated 
restroom building and park amenities (including playground equipment, handrails, picnic tables, etc.). The City held 
the required public hearing for the CDBG Application on November 6, 2013. The County has determined the project 
is categorically exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act and categorically excluded from the National 
Environmental Policy Act. 
 
The County has approved the City’s application for CDBG funds for the project. CDBG funds in the amount of 
$194,832 are available to the City for the project. The funds include the City’s 2014-2015 allocation of $144,832 and 
$50,000 in un-programmed funds from the City of Mendota. The $50,000 from the City of Mendota will be 
reimbursed from the City’s future CDBG allocations. 
 
 
 
 

56



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 19 
Katie’s Park CDBG Agreement 
  
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The total CDBG funding available to the City for the project is $194,832, which includes the City’s 2014-2015 
allocation ($144,832) and un-programmed funds from the City of Mendota ($50,000). There is no required City 
match for the CDBG funds. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None Required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution 
B. CDBG Agreement 

 
 
  

57



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 19 
Katie’s Park CDBG Agreement 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
APPROVING THE AGREEMENT FOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) FUNDS FOR  

THE KERMAN KATIE’S PARK IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
 

WHEREAS, a Public Hearing was held by the City Council on November 6, 2013 to discuss an application for 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds for 2014-2015; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City submitted an application for CDBG funding to the County of Fresno for the Kerman Katie’s Park 

Improvements Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County has approved the application for the Kerman Katie’s Park Improvements Project and is ready 

to proceed with the Project. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN HEREBY APPROVES the Agreement for 
CDBG funds for the Kerman Katie’s Park Improvements Project and authorizes the Mayor to sign the Agreement on behalf of 
the City. 
  

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 17th 
day of December, 2014, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 
 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
                                                                                  
       Stephen B. Hill  

Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
                                                                  
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 
  

 

58



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 19 
Katie’s Park CDBG Agreement 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 

 

59



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 19 
Katie’s Park CDBG Agreement 
  

60



City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 19 
Katie’s Park CDBG Agreement 
  

61



City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 19 
Katie’s Park CDBG Agreement 
  

62



City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 19 
Katie’s Park CDBG Agreement 
  

63



City Council Staff Report   Page 9 of 19 
Katie’s Park CDBG Agreement 
  

64



City Council Staff Report   Page 10 of 19 
Katie’s Park CDBG Agreement 
  

65



City Council Staff Report   Page 11 of 19 
Katie’s Park CDBG Agreement 
  

66



City Council Staff Report   Page 12 of 19 
Katie’s Park CDBG Agreement 
  

67



City Council Staff Report   Page 13 of 19 
Katie’s Park CDBG Agreement 
  

68



City Council Staff Report   Page 14 of 19 
Katie’s Park CDBG Agreement 
  

69



City Council Staff Report   Page 15 of 19 
Katie’s Park CDBG Agreement 
  

70



City Council Staff Report   Page 16 of 19 
Katie’s Park CDBG Agreement 
  

71



City Council Staff Report   Page 17 of 19 
Katie’s Park CDBG Agreement 
  

72



City Council Staff Report   Page 18 of 19 
Katie’s Park CDBG Agreement 
  

73



City Council Staff Report   Page 19 of 19 
Katie’s Park CDBG Agreement 
  

 

74



2015 Kerman City Council Reorganization 
 

Committees, Commissions and Boards 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Updated: Council approved – March 5, 2014 

 

  
Mayor Pro Tem:  
Chairs CC/Oversight Committee in Mayor’s absence 

Gary Yep 

  
Fresno County Committees/Boards:  

Council of Fresno County Governments (COG): 
Alternate: 

Stephen Hill 
Gary Yep 

  
Fresno Co. Mosquito and Vector Control Board: 
Alternate: 

Ken Moore 
Vacant 

  
West County Solid Waste Planning Committee: 
Alternate: 

Vacant 
City Manager 

  
Westside Cable Television Committee:  
Alternate: 

Vacant  
Finance Director  

  
Planning Commission:  
Alternate: 
Staff: 

Nathan Fox 
Bill Nijjer 

Planning Director 
  
Recreation Commission:  
Alternate:  
Staff: 

Vacant 
Gary Yep 

CS Director 
  
Traffic Committee:  
Chair: 

Bill Nijjer 
Chief of Police 

  
San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District: 
Alternate: 

Gary Yep 
Doug Wilcox 

  
Upper Kings Basin IRWM Authority: 
Alternate: 

Gary Yep 
PW Director 

75


	Agenda
	Certificate of Recognition to Wyatt Wolf Placing First in the Nation for Ag Mechanics Fabrication and Design
	Wyatt Wolf Biography

	Request for Donation from Kerman Pop Warner Cheer-Senior Team
	Letter 

	Request for Donation from Kerman Quarterback Club
	Letter

	Minutes
	December 3, 2014

	Payroll
	Payroll/Overtime Report

	Warrants
	Accounts Payable

	Resolution Approving Renewal of Land Lease of 15.2 Acres with Earl Giacolini and Roland Nale (E & R Ranch)
	Staff Report - Giacolini Lease

	Monthly Investment Report Ending November 30, 2014
	Investment Reports

	Resolution Acquiring Additional Right of Way for the Traffic Signal Project at the Southeast Corner of Vineland Avenue and Whitesbridge Road (Sidhu Family Trust)
	Staff Report - Right of Way 

	Resolution Accepting the 2014 Street Repair Project
	Staff Report - Street Repair Acceptance

	Resolution Appointing Members to the Planning Commission and Announcement of Votes
	Staff Report - Planning Commission Appointments

	Resolution Approving the Agreement for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds for the Kerman Katie's Park Improvement Project
	Staff Report - 2014-2015 CDBG Agreement

	Council Assignments for Committees, Commissions and Boards
	Current Council Assignments

	Untitled



